
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE RURAL RETREAT TOWN 
COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2012, 7:00 P.M. 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Timothy Litz; Vice-Mayor A. Keith Crigger; Ed Schaack; 

Dale Yontz; Jerrell Hall; Peggy Hash; James P. “Sean” Viars 
     
Council Members Absent: None 
 
Administration Present: Michael James, Town Manager; Lori Guynn, Clerk/Treasurer  
 
Administration Absent: Scott Mitchell, Police Chief 
 
Others Present: Chris Kyle & Bill Gilliam – Shentel Cable Company; Porter Sage 

– Rural Retreat Cable T.V., Inc.; Eleanor Sage; Melissa Mercer; 
Kim Sage 

 
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
Mayor Litz called the meeting to order and determined a quorum was present. 
 
INVOCATION  
 
The invocation was given by Rev. Ed Schaack. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Litz. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
CABLE SYSTEM FRANCHISE – Mayor Litz read the public notice as published.  He opened 
the public hearing for comments.  Chris Kyle with Shentel Cable Company addressed the 
Council and gave a summary about the organization, discussed their service area and the 
broadband, cable television and telephone services they offer.  He added they have a local office 
in Wytheville and he highlighted their plans for the Rural Retreat cable system.  Mr. Kyle stated 
the current system will remain the same at this time including the programming and Shentel will 
begin billing the Rural Retreat customers in January.  He explained beginning in the spring 
Shentel will begin rebuilding the system by installing fiber service to every home.  In November 
2013 customers will be transitioned to the new system and the programming will change to 
mirror the programming available in Wytheville he added.  Mayor Litz asked Mr. Kyle if 
Shentel’s service will be available in the surrounding areas.  Mr. Kyle responded he was unsure 
at the time and will not know for certain until the new system is established.  Mayor Litz asked if 
Shentel will continue to offer the community service channel.  Mr. Kyle stated the current 
channel will be available until customers are transitioned to the new system at which time it will 
no longer be offered.  Councilmember Schaack commented the contract calls for a public access  



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 11, 2012 – PAGE 2 
 
channel.  Town Manager James explained Shentel is interested in adding an access channel but it 
hasn’t been finalized.  Councilmember Schaack asked if the channel would be free to the town.  
Mr. Kyle replied yes.  Porter Sage commented on offering digital channels and expressed his 
concerns with the package pricing due to senior citizens being interested in channels that won’t 
be available on the basic package.  Mayor Litz commented he was excited to see Shentel provide 
competition to CenturyLink and he added Mr. Sage has lost ground over the years due to not 
providing digital channels.  Mr. Kyle addressed the internet speeds that will be available when 
the new system is launched.  He explained Shentel will be offering internet service at higher 
speeds than what is currently available in Rural Retreat. 
 
Mayor Litz asked if anyone else would like to speak.  Mr. Sage spoke and stated he had worked 
hard since 1974 to build the cable system and always had the people at heart.  He added he lost 
customers over the years because he couldn’t provide internet service or couldn’t offer certain 
channels.  He further stated for him to go out and have Shentel to come in and build a new and 
better service for the community makes him feel good. 
 
Vice-Mayor Crigger asked Mr. Sage if he had an agreement with Shentel to take over the cable 
television service on January 1.  Mr. Sage responded yes.  There being no additional comments 
the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mayor Litz stated he would like to address the Cable Franchise Ordinance now instead of later in 
the agenda.  He asked for a motion regarding the proposed ordinance.  Vice-Mayor Crigger made 
a motion to accept Ordinance 20-A issuing Shenandoah Cable Television, LLC, doing business 
as Shentel Cable Company a franchise to construct, operate and maintain a cable television 
system in Rural Retreat.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Yontz and passed by a 
vote of six (6) for: Crigger, Hall, Hash, Schaack, Viars, Yontz; zero (0) against. 
 
Mayor Litz thanked the guests for their time and for attending.  He thanked Mr. Kyle and Mr. 
Gilliam for their interest in Rural Retreat.  Those present except Mr. Sage left the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Yontz, seconded by Councilmember Viars to approve 
the minutes of the November 27, 2012 regular meeting.  There being no discussion, the motion 
passed by a vote of four (4) for: Crigger, Schaack, Viars, Yontz; zero (0) against; two (2) 
abstained: Hall, Hash. 
 
CITIZEN’S TIME    
 
NONE 
  
 
 
 



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 11, 2012 – PAGE 3 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Town Manager James read a thank you card from the Rural Retreat Community Center Board 
expressing gratitude for the town’s financial assistance provided this year. 
 
POLICE REPORT 
 
Town Manager James noted Chief Mitchell had submitted his November activity report for 
review.  He pointed out the main concern was the theft of the Christmas decorations on 
Sherwood Avenue which is being investigated by the Wythe County Sheriff’s office.  Vice-
Mayor Crigger added there are stray dog issues on Chinquapin Avenue again. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
DELINQUENT TAX COLLECTIONS – Town Manager James reported he and Clerk/Treasurer 
Guynn are continuing to work on this and hope to have information available after the first of the 
year. 
 
RURAL RETREAT DEPOT FOUNDATION UTILITY WAIVER REQUEST – Town Manager 
James reported following the last meeting he presumes the Council prefers to wait until the 
Foundation needs service to make a decision.  Mayor Litz concurred. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORDINANCE 20-A – CABLE SYSTEM FRANCHISE – This item was acted upon following 
the public hearing. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
HERITAGE DAYS – Chairman Yontz reported he would like to meet prior to the next Council 
meeting on January 8 at 6:00 p.m. with Town Manager James, Clerk/Treasurer Guynn and 
Mayor Litz to go over the budget for the 2012 festival.  He would like to begin sending out 
sponsorship letters after the beginning of the year.  Chairman Yontz commented he also wanted 
to contact Shentel to request their support.  Town Manager James stated he has previously 
spoken to them about participating and they are interested in setting up a vendor space. 
 
FINANCE & APPROPRIATIONS – Mayor Litz asked Clerk/Treasurer Guynn if she had an 
update on the audit.  She explained the invoice had been received and the report should be 
forthcoming. 
 
PERSONNEL – No report. 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
The following items were discussed and/or acted upon: 



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 11, 2012 – PAGE 4 
 
OUT-OF-TOWN WATER PROJECT DIVISION IV (WATER PLANT ELECTRICAL 
IMPROVEMENTS) – We are still working to schedule final inspection on this project.  We hope 
to have the electrical engineer and contractor on site by next week.  We now have the VFD’s 
working properly with the motor, and feel comfortable with closing the project out. 
  
OUT-OF-TOWN WATER PROJECT DIVISION III (Chinquapin & Lee Highway) – We have 
four connections remaining on this project. 
 
TEA-21 PHASE VII SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – We should be receiving final 
approval from the VDOT office in Richmond in the coming weeks.  Due to the upcoming 
holiday we may experience some delay.  Town Manager James added he had spoken to Chip 
Worley with Anderson & Associates and he had stated they are ready to begin the project upon 
receiving VDOT’s approval; however the project may not begin until the spring. 
 
DR. PEPPER LOT – Design work will begin as soon as the survey work is given to Thompson 
& Litton.  Our citizen committee will be involved in project design after the first of the year.  
Pillar Engineering is completing the survey work, Town Manager James added. 
 
GENERAL SERVICES DIRECTOR – We have reviewed the application received and offered 
the position of General Services Director to Tony Wright.  He is now working closely with our 
maintenance staff and Rodney with a start date of January 2, 2013.  Town Manager James stated 
he is looking forward to that department turning around and the town is expecting a lot of things 
out of this position. 
 
WATER/WASTEWATER OPERATOR JOB ADVERTISEMENT – We will be accepting 
applications for a water and wastewater operator until mid-January. 
 
WWTP UV DISINFECTION – We are sending the requested information to the Virginia 
Resources Authority for DEQ.  After our financial information has been evaluated the loan can 
be approved. 
 
FY 2013-2014 BUDGETARY PREPARATION – In January staff will present a FY 13-14 
budget planning schedule to the Finance Committee and the Town Council.  Along with the 
recommended budget for FY 13-14, staff will recommend a Capital Improvement Plan for 
Council’s review and approval. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Prior to the treasurer’s report, Clerk/Treasurer Guynn reminded the Councilmember’s of the 
Christmas Dinner on December 19th at the Rural Retreat Community Center at 6:30 p.m.  She 
added she needs to know if the Councilmember’s and their family plan to attend.  The next item 
addressed was the December 25th meeting which will need to be dispensed with and 
authorization will need to be given to pay invoices that would have been presented at the 
meeting. 



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – DECEMBER 11, 2012 – PAGE 5 
 
The bills for December 11, 2012 were read and approved. 
 
Mayor Litz asked for a motion to dispense with the December 25th regular meeting and to 
authorize Clerk/Treasurer Guynn to pay invoices. 
 
TALK OF THE TOWN 
 
Town Manager James is to attend the Talk of the Town radio program at the WYVE/WXBX 
radio station on Wednesday morning. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no additional business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned upon a motion by 
Councilmember Hall.  The motion was duly seconded and approved. 
 
 
 
 
                 
 Mayor        
 
 
 
                
Clerk 
                        


